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Responses to Questions from Bidders 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
 

For the provision of consulting and professional services in relation to West Bank Courthouses Construction Project 

 

 

Question 

Number 

Question Response 

1 Can I submit the proposal on May 1st, 2019? Yes. Our office is open on May 1, 2019. 

2 Regarding the language requirements, please clarify 

how to prove my language proficiency of +4? Do I have 

to undergo a test? Or just submit official letter 

documents or how? 

Language skills will be assessed though the documents submitted by 

the applicant and by in person evaluation for shortlisted candidates. 

3 Kindly clarify the type of attachments and/or needed 

documents to be submitted together with the proposal, 

ie. financial proposal, technical proposal , and if other 

documents are required. 

All required documents are listed in the Request for 

Proposals and the Terms of Reference. 

 

4 In paragraph 12.2, page 8, the estimated period of the 

resultant contract is two (2) years and in section 4, page 

18, the table of the financial offer includes 3 years at 120 

days each year. Should we fill in the prices in the 

financial offer to cover three years or two years? Should 

this be always within the CAD $260,000 regardless if it is 

2 or 3 years? 

The assignment duration is two years. The financial offer 

should be for two years only. Please see Addendum 1 for 

the correction. 

 

5 It is understood that the key team members will be 5: the 

Team Leader, the structural, the architect, the 

mechanical and electrical, and we may have other 

supporting team like the QS, cost estimate, material,   

building automation, life safety, etc. Should we specify a  

level of effort for the supporting staff maintaining the  

maximum allocated or their effort will be included in the 

effort of the 5 key  team members? 

The team members should include experts in the required 

fields. The number of the team members is not fixed as the 

Team Leader might be one of the experts in the specified 

expertise. 

 

6 In form B, page 14, it is mentioned that the maximum 

pages for a CV is 5, while in page 27, the maximum is 8, 

pls confirm if 5 or 8. 

The maximum number of pages for the CB should be 5. 

Please see Addendum 1 for the correction. 
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7 Should we attach as evidence to the CVs, any 

supporting document, like for example the education 

certificate, the memberships, the other professional 

certification, experience certificates, etc. or they can be 

submitted later upon your request? 

Not at this stage. 

8 Is there any joint visit or tender meeting for the 

participating consultants and when if it is to be 

conducted? 

No, there is no joint visit or tender meeting planned. 

 

9 Are the consultants requested to submit their offices 

profiles, if yes will this be part of the technical 

evaluation? 

 

Bidders are only required to submit the documentation requested in 

the Request for Proposals. Any additional information is not 

mandatory and would be supplementary. All members of a Joint 

Venture are required to submit a Form A – Technical Proposal Cover 

Page, and clearly identify the lead point of contact of the Joint 

Venture. 

10 What about the offices, site establishments of the 

management team? 

No, bidders are only required to submit the documentation requested 

in the Request for Proposals. 

11 Is the LMP Consultant "is it a team or Individual? The Consultant will be comprised of experts in the required disciplines 

(as referenced in Section 5 of the Terms of Reference on Page 20 of 

the Request for Proposals), with a designated Team Lead. 

12 Can you explain the format of financial proposal? The format of the Financial Proposal is explained on page 5,  

Section 9 of the Request for Proposals. 

13 In regard to the post of Local Project Monitor (LPM), I 

would like to know if you receive applications from 

Gaza? 

While there is no prohibition from bidders applying from  

Gaza, bidder would be fully responsible for arranging their  

own travel permits and the position is based in the West  

Bank. 

14 TOR page No.8 sub-clause ref. 12.1 states that (The 

maximum available funding for this RFP & the resultant 

contract is $ 260,000.00 Canadian Dollar.); while next 

sub-clause ref. 12.2 states (The estimated period of the 

resultant contract is two years), and sub-clause ref. 12.3 

states (The Bidder grants irrevocable option to extend 

the term of the contract on an annual basis up to 1 year 

...etc.) Please confirm whether the allocated maximum 

available funding of $260,000 Canadian Dollar is for the 

estimated period of the resultant contract of two year or 

The allocated maximum funding of $260,000 Canadian dollars is for 

the estimated period of the resultant contract of two years. 
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Is it for three years (two years plus the optional 

extension of another one year)? 

15 TOR refer to Financial Proposal "Form C", please 

confirm whether TOR page No.18 which includes a table 

titled (Section 4: Financial Proposal - Standard Form) is 

the same Form C to be filled by bidder as Financial  

form?   

Yes, page No. 18 is the same Form C to be filled out by bidders. 

Please see Addendum 1 for the correction. 

16 Shall all bidders fill the fee of first year, second year and  

third year as shown in TOR page No.18 Section 4:  

Financial Proposal - Standard Form?  Moreover, please  

advise whether the fee for first year and second year  

shall be of the same daily amount in Canadian Dollar or  

bidder could use different fees within the first two years? 

The bidder should fill out the first and second year on page  

No. 18. Please see Addendum for correction. The bidder is  

free to use different rates for each year. 

 

17 TOR page No.22 stated (The LPM and its sub-

contractors are expected to work up to a total 

of sixty (75) hours per month or ten (10) days). Please 

confirm whether that the word sixty shall be replaced by 

seventy five?  

Yes, the word “sixty” has been replaced by the word  

“seventy-five.” Please see Addendum 1 for the correction. 

 

18 In case the Bidder is a group of individuals with LPM; 

please advise whether attending the LPM with another 

expert / sub-contract to a bi-weekly meeting will be 

considered as a one working day regardless of how 

many attended the meeting or two working day since 

two individuals have attended the meeting? 

The total level of effort expected is up to a total of seventy-five (75) 

hours per month or 10 (ten) days. It is up to the LPM to manage this 

while meeting the deliverable requirements. 

19 Please advise whether the technical proposal shall only 

includes only: 

Form A: Technical Proposal Cover Page 

Form B: Curriculum Vitae of Proposed Individuals 

Or forms A & B are mandatory and the bidders are free 

to add other sections within the technical proposal such 

as other sections related to (Introductions, or 

Annexes...etc.) 

Bidders are only required to submit the documentation  

requested in the Request for Proposals. Any additional  

information is not mandatory and would be supplementary.  

 

20 While the bidders requested to exclude all applicable  

taxes from the price and to show the total estimated  

amounts of applicable taxes separately in the financial  

proposal form,  

According to the Memorandum of Understanding between  

the Government of Canada and the Palestinian Authority in  

regards to the Courthouses Construction Project, Canada’s  

contribution cannot be used to pay any taxes, fees, customs  
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a. is the project is Value Added Tax (VAT) exempted 

(Zero VAT) or it is not? 

b. if the project includes the VAT, the VAT will be  

disbursed to the consultant in addition to the fees? 

c. The income Tax will be deducted from the consultant  

payment request or it is the responsibility of the 

consultant to submit "Source deduction certificate"? 

duties or any other levies or charges imposed directly or  

indirectly by the Palestinian Authority on any goods,  

materials, equipment, vehicles and services purchased or  

acquired to meet project requirements or in relation to the  

implementation of the Project. 

  

Income tax procedures are the sole responsibility of the 

Consultant. 

21 Does the 10 days/month level of effort (LOE) mean 10 

days/month for each proposed individual? 

As per page 22 of the Terms of Reference in the Request for 

Proposals, the LPM and its sub-contractors are expected to work up 

to a total of seventy-five (75) hours per month or ten (10) days. 

22 Does the level of effort includes the home "in office" and 

field working hours? 

The level of effort includes all working hours. 

 

23 Can I sent them to email. If yes, what is the email name? As per page 1 of the Request for Proposals, no email  

submissions will be accepted. Proposals must be submitted  

in person at 12 Elias Odeh Street, Ramallah, West Bank,  

P.O. Box 18604, Jerusalem 91184. 

24 What exactly your searching for, an individual, a  

consultation firm, or maybe a group of expert to cover 

the mentioned tasks. What I mean can I apply as an  

individual, or do I have to apply with a group of experts? 

As per section 2 of the Terms of Reference on page 19 of  

the Request for Proposals, the services may be provided by  

either A) an individual who can sub-contract a  

multidisciplinary team, or B) a firm comprised of individuals  

qualified to provide professional services in a range of  

disciplines. As per section 5 of the Terms of Reference on  

page 20, the applicant must be capable of providing  

technical and monitoring services in the disciplines related  

to construction management of large–scale facilities,  

including architecture, and structural, mechanical, electrical,  

and building systems engineering. In particular, expertise in  

civil/structural engineering, quantity surveying/cost  

estimating, design and construction of mechanical systems,  

including Building Automation Systems (BAS) and life safety  

(sprinkler and standpipe suppression); and electrical  

security systems. 

25 In case you need a group of expert, can a group of  

Engineers apply as a one group, or does it have to be a  

legally registered consultation firm? 

As per section 2 of the Terms of Reference on page 19 of  

the Request for Proposals, the services may be provided by  

either A) an individual who can sub-contract a  
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multidisciplinary team, or B) a firm comprised of individuals  

qualified to provide professional services in a range of  

disciplines. 

26 In the technical component phase 1, pages 29 and 30:  

Points R2.3 and R2.4: (The team leader should  

demonstrate their experience). Are both points  

connected only to the team leader? if yes then the  

word their to be changed to his, pls confirm. 

These two components focus on the capacity of the Team Leader  

themselves. As such, it refers to “his or her" experience. 

27 You mentioned in the Condition of Contract, Insurances  

and Financial capability. Please clarify what type of  

Insurances you mean and what type of financial  

capability you need and for what purpose as this will be  

a service contract? 

As per section 15.1.a, on page 8 of the Request for Proposals, the  

Bidder is responsible for deciding if insurance coverage is necessary  

to fulfill its obligations under the contract and to ensure compliance.  

As stated in section 15.1.b on page 8 of the Request for Proposals,  

GAC may require access to the Bidder’s financial information  

including but not limited to financial statements, balance sheets and  

any other financial documentation to support compliance. However,  

nothing is required at this stage. 

28 Please clarify if acceptable to submit individuals as  

mechanical or electrical engineers with less that 10  

years experience and if this considered what score will  

have? 

As per the weighted criteria referenced in R2.2 of the Technical  

Evaluation Grid on page 29 of the Request for Proposals, an  

individual with less than 10 years of experience will receive a score of  

0. 

29 What is the RFP reference Number? There is no RFP reference number. Bidders can reference the title on  

page 1 of the RFP - "Request for Proposals (RFP) - For the provision  

of consulting and professional services in relation to West Bank  

Courthouses Construction Project" 

 

 

 

 

 

 


